RaffAello-Astrum Financial Holdings Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Stock Code: 8333

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ABOUT THIS REPORT	1
Governance Structure	1
Reporting Principles	2
Report Boundaries	2
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT	3
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT	4
ENVIRONMENT	5
A1. Emissions, A2. Use of Resources, A3. The Environment and Natural Resources,	
and A4. Climate Change	5
SOCIAL	8
Employment and Labour Practices	8
B1. Employment	8
B2. Health and Safety	10
B3. Development and Training	11
B4. Labour Standards	12
Operating Practices	12
B5. Supply Chain Management	12
B6. Product Responsibility	13
B7. Anti-corruption, Anti-money Laundering and Counter-terrorist Financing	14
Community	16
B8. Community Engagement	16

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The board of directors (the "**Board**") of RaffAello-Astrum Financial Holdings Limited (the "**Company**") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to the "**Group**") is pleased to present this environmental, social and governance (the "**ESG**") report for the year ended 31 December 2021, which is prepared pursuant to the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the "**ESG Guide**") set out in Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "**GEM Listing Rules**").

Governance Structure

The Board has the overall responsibility for the leadership of the Group's ESG strategy and, together with the management of the Group, the Board continues to drive appropriate measures and to ensure systems and guidelines are in place to address relevant ESG issues. The Group believes that the ESG strategy in place will foster sustainability of its business operations.

Effective implementation of ESG policies relies on the collaboration of different business and functional departments. The Board intends to communicate with the management on an ongoing basis in order to evaluate, prioritize and manage material ESG-related issues and risks to the business that may have impact on the Group, so as to ensure the current policies follow laws and regulations as well as to meet business needs and stakeholders' expectations.

The Group collects the views on ESG from the major stakeholders through various engagement channels in order to review ESG-related goals and targets.

Reporting Principles

The Group adopts the principle of materiality in the ESG reporting by conducting stakeholder engagement on an annual basis to understand the key ESG issues that are important to the business of the Group. For the sake of materiality principle stated in the ESG Guide, aspects and issues that are not relevant or material to the Group are excluded from this ESG Report. All the key ESG issues and key performance indicators (the "**KPIs**") are reported in the ESG Report according to recommendations of the ESG Guide. The Group has complied with the "comply or explain" provisions set out in the ESG Guide for the year ended 31 December 2021. Please refer to the sections of "Stakeholder Engagement" and "Materiality Assessment" for detailed information of the process adopted for selection of material ESG factors and the stakeholder engagement.

In preparation of relevant specific KPIs, quantitative approach with consistent methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation is adopted for the information in the ESG Report in order to present a fair comparison and unbiased picture of performance from year to year. Sufficient description or reference to the standards adopted have been disclosed under relevant sections of the ESG Report.

Report Boundaries

This report covers the overall performance of the Group in environmental and social aspects for the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 and focuses on the financial services provided by the Group in the Hong Kong office located at Room 2704, 27th Floor, Tower 1, Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong. For corporate governance practices of the Group, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report of the Annual Report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group understands that the success of achieving its sustainability vision and purpose is intrinsically linked to its stakeholders, including but not limited to core team members and long-term employees. One of the Group's core missions is to engage with and create value for its stakeholders over the long term, including identifying material matters that affect the economic, environmental and social impact of the business. In 2021, the Group continued to maintain an open dialogue with its stakeholders to help better align the business and sustainability strategy. With regular communication and interaction with stakeholders, the Group can better maintain a balance between its business practices and sustainability strategies in line with stakeholders' needs and expectations.

The following table sets out the Group's major stakeholders and their respective engagement channels.

Stakeholders	Engagement Channels			
Shareholders and Investors	General meetings			
	Financial reports			
	Announcements and circulars			
	Company website			
	• Mail, email, facsimile and telephone communications			
Customers	Face-to-face communications			
	Business meetings			
	• Mail, email, facsimile and telephone communications			
Employees	Trainings and seminars			
	Performance appraisals			
	Employee activities			
	Daily communications			
Business Partners	Business meetings and conferences			
Government and	Statutory filings and notifications			
Regulatory Authorities	• Written or electronic correspondences			
Community	Community services			
	Donations			

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In order to assess the key issues in environment, social and governance relevant to the Group, the management of the Group discussed and worked out a list of key issues with reference to the ESG Guide in the GEM Listing Rules. With the list of internally identified key issues, the Group conducted a survey to collect its stakeholders' opinion on the materiality of each issue relevant to the Group. The following distribution map shows the importance of the key issues considered by the management and the stakeholders of the Group.



Significance to the Group

Based on the results of the materiality assessment, employee-related issues, customer privacy protection, anti-corruption and anti-money laundering ("AML") and customer services are considered to be the most concerned issues of the stakeholders of the Group. The Board will review these issues regularly and ensure these issues and any business risk associated are being addressed for continuous improvement in its sustainability performance.

ENVIRONMENT

A1. Emissions, A2. Use of Resources, A3. The Environment and Natural Resources, and A4. Climate Change

The operating activities of the Group are mainly conducted in the office located in Hong Kong with gross floor area of approximately 4,400 square feet. The business of the Group does not involve direct air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, or generation of hazardous waste. The major non-hazardous waste is office paper and the Group has adopted various practices to reduce the consumption of paper. There are no laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business of the Group.

The Group is committed to protecting the environment. The Group has identified areas of environmental impacts attributable to its operations, and adopted various measures to reduce the consumption of energy and other resources, minimize waste and increase recycling. The Group also educates its employees on their awareness of promoting a "green" environment. Steps have been taken to reduce energy use in the workplace by using energy-efficient LED lighting, switching off the lights in vacant office areas, switching off the air conditioning after office hours, and setting the air-conditioning system at an optimal temperature.

The Group is also creating a paperless working environment to reduce environmental pollution by reminding employees to "think before you print" and assess the need of printing. Where appropriate, duplex printing is used, and reusing any single-side printed papers for copying is recommended. The Group has long been encouraging its securities trading customers to receive daily and monthly statements by email. A majority of the customers have agreed to receive e-statements which in turn help reduce printing and mailing of statements. The Group is committed to continuing to reduce paper consumption.

In respect of the choice of vehicles, the Group takes environmental protection and energy efficiency into consideration. The Group encourages employees to turn off the engine when the vehicle is not in use and also reminds employees to plan routes ahead of time in order to reduce route repetition and optimize fuel consumption. There is also regular maintenance service for the vehicles to ensure optimal engine performance and fuel use.

Key performance indicators in respect of the environmental issues relevant to the Group

	Unit	2020	2021				
Sources of Greenhouse gas ("GHG")							
emission							
Seems 1 CHC amissions							
Scope 1 GHG emissions	1 00	2 202	10 407				
– Petrol	kg CO ₂ e	3,202	19,427				
– Gas oil	kg CO ₂ e	-	6,420				
Total Scope 1 GHG emissions	kg CO ₂ e	3,202	25,847				
Scope 2 GHG emissions							
– Electricity	kg CO ₂ e	22,347	22,018				
	C						
Scope 3 GHG emissions							
– Paper waste	kg CO ₂ e	5,388	4,584				
Tuper Harte		2,200	1,001				
Total (Scope 1, 2 & 3) GHG emissions	kg CO ₂ e	30,937	52,449				
GHG emissions intensity	kg CO ₂ e/employee	1,146	1,943				
Non-hazardous waste produced							
Paper waste	Tonnes	1.12	0.95				
Non-hazardous waste intensity	kg/employee	42	35				
	8r - J		20				
Total energy consumption	kWh	39,998	125,068				
Total energy consumption intensity	kWh/employee	1,481	4,632				
i otai chergy consumption intensity	k will employee	1,401	7,052				

Note: Emissions for nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur oxides (SOx), and respirable suspended particulates (RSP) are not disclosed as the amount is insignificant.

The CO₂ emission figures above were calculated according to the "Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong" jointly published by the Hong Kong's Environmental Protection Department and the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department. Water consumption in the office pantry is considered to be minimal. The Group does not have a meter to measure the amount of water consumption and therefore no such information is available. As the business of the Group does not produce a significant amount of emission or non-hazardous waste, nor does the Group consume a significant amount of energy or water, the Group did not establish a quantitative target or trace the achieved result regarding its emission and waste reduction, energy-saving or water-saving initiatives.

In addition, due to the nature of business, the Group does not have physical products for sale and therefore does not involve any use of packaging materials. Therefore, this disclosure is not applicable to the Group.

As the principal business of the Group is office-based, there are no significant impacts on the environment and natural resources nor are there any climate-related issues that have impacted or may impact the Group. The main environmental impact of the Group's business is the indirect impact of carbon dioxide generated by power and paper usage in its daily business activities. The Group has adopted various practices to reduce its impact on the environment as mentioned above, including but not limited to reducing energy consumption and use of paper in the workplace. In view of the possible natural disasters or adverse weathers which might affect the Group's operation, a business contingency plan is in place to define the recovery process for restoring the critical business functions of the Group and minimising the disruptions of business operation. The staff handbook of the Group also stipulates the work arrangements for office in the event of typhoon or rainstorms.

The Group conducts year to year comparison for the data on the GHG emission, the use of resources, including petrol consumption, electricity consumption, and paper waste to quantify the Group's achievements in terms of its measures on emission and waste reduction and initiatives on efficient use of resources. The management considers that the overall results of the environmental protection measures are satisfactory, and the Group will continue to make contributions to environmental protection.

SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

B1. Employment

The Group regards its employees as the most valuable assets and resources. It believes that a balanced workforce is crucial for building a sustainable business model and delivering long term returns. As the business operation of the Group is conducted in Hong Kong only, all employees of the Group are based in Hong Kong.

The Group enters into written employment contracts with all employees which set out the employees' responsibilities, remuneration and grounds for termination of employment. Staff handbook is also in place to deal with compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare. The Group provides a good working environment for its employees, including a workplace free from discrimination and harassment, and allows equal opportunities among all employees along with competitive remuneration. Staff appraisal is conducted annually to evaluate the performance of each staff during the year and assess the award of discretionary bonus, salary review, promotion and career development. The Group also advocates work-life balance, which is essential for sustainability and a sound body and mind of every employee. To support employees in maintaining a work-life balance, the Group organised a variety of staff activities such as sports games, hiking and festive celebrations. These activities helped strengthen the relationships among the employees and therefore cultivating a harmonious working environment.

In 2021, the Group duly complied with the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Workforce by gender and age group

	As at 31 December 2020			As at 31 December 2021		
Age group	Male	Female	Total	Male	Female	Total
18–35	4	4	8	2	4	6
36–55	14	4	18	14	5	19
56 or above	0	1	1	1	1	2
Total	18	9	27	17	10	27

Employee turnover rate in Hong Kong by gender and age group

	As at 31 December 2020			As at 31 December 2021		
Age group	Male	Female	Total	Male	Female	Total
18–35	0%	0%	0%	100%	0%	33%
36–55	0%	0%	0%	7%	0%	5%
56 or above	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%	0%
Total	0%	0%	0%	18%	0%	11%

Employee diversity by employment type

	As at 31 December 2020	As at 31 December 2021
Full-time	27	27
Part-time	0	0
Total	27	27

Employee diversity by geographical region

	As at 31 December 2020	As at 31 December 2021
Hong Kong	27	27
Outside Hong Kong	0	0
Total	27	27

Note: The figures shown in the above tables exclude self-employed account executives and independent non-executive directors of the Company.

B2. Health and Safety

The Group values the healthiness and well-being of its employees. To maintain a safe and comfortable working environment, the Group keeps good ventilation throughout the office, arranges routine carpet cleaning, installs sufficient lighting in each work station, and provides sufficient first-aid kit at office. The Group strictly complies with Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong). In addition to employees' compensation insurance, the Group also provides general medical insurance to its employees which covers in-patient, out-patient, Chinese medicine treatment and dental treatment.

In response to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has taken certain actions to strengthen the health and safety precautionary measures in its workplace. Apart from increasing the frequency of office cleaning and sterilisation, employees are also required to wear surgical face masks in office areas. Epidemic prevention supplies such as thermometer, alcohol-based hand sanitisers and spare surgical face masks are provided in office, and guideline on the disposal of surgical face masks is provided to employees to ensure face masks are properly disposed after use. Following the launch of COVID-19 vaccination programme by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government in 2021, the Group has encouraged its staff to receive vaccine as earliest as possible and granted a day of vaccination leave for staff to take rest after each dose of vaccination. The Group has strictly followed guidelines and announcements made by the Centre for Health Protection, Department of Health of Hong Kong in regards to epidemic prevention, and the Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working environment for employees.

In 2020 and 2021, there were no work related fatalities.

In 2020, there was no lost days due to work injury. On 25 October 2021, the office assistant of the Group accidentally fell on the ground during delivery of document and caused fracture of right patella. Since the accident and up to the publication of this report, the office assistant was on sick leave and has been undergoing physiotherapy treatment. Colleagues have expressed sympathy and extended all necessary assistance to her. With the support of other colleagues and external courier service, the daily operation in the office was not materially interrupted during her sick leave period.

Pursuant to the Employee's Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong), an employer is liable to pay compensation in respect of injuries sustained by his employees as a result of an accident arising out of and in the course of employment. The Human Resources Department of the Group has reported the case to the Labour Department of Hong Kong and the insurer of the employees' compensation insurance policy of the Group within the designated timeframe. The Group has paid, and will continue to pay, compensation to the office assistant pursuant to the Employee's Compensation Ordinance. Such compensation shall then be claimed by the Group from the employees' compensation insurance policy. It is expected that the amount of compensation, if not fully covered by the employees' compensation insurance claim, is immaterial to the Group.

B3. Development and Training

The Group recognises the importance for its employees to actively pursue professional trainings to enhance their technical knowledge and keep abreast of the latest developments of the financial market in Hong Kong. The Group is obliged to comply with various ordinances, rules and guidelines including but not limited to the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the "**SFO**"), the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the GEM Listing Rules and the Guideline on Anti- Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing issued by the Securities and Futures Commission (the "**SFC**").

The Group also observes the Guidelines on Continuous Professional Training set out under section 399 of the SFO. It also adheres to the code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code under Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules under which all directors are required to participate in professional training to update and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Group supports and encourages its directors, responsible officers, licensed representatives and employees in fulfilling their respective professional training requirements by arranging in-house training sessions and encouraging them to attend trainings and industry updates organised by various professional bodies.

In 2021, the Group conducted in-house trainings covering AML, updates on laws, codes, rules and regulations, and other topics related to regulated activities carried out by the Group in order for employees to maintain the highest standard of professional conduct and ethics. The Group also conducted regular meetings to provide employees on the latest updates of relevant laws and regulations and to allow employees to openly discuss any issues concerning the latest developments and their impact on the Group's operations. In 2020 and 2021, all employees of the Group received training relevant to their job position.

	2020		2021	
Employee category	Male	Female	Male	Female
	(Hours)	(Hours)	(Hours)	(Hours)
Responsible Officers	7.0	8.8	7.0	6.8
Licensed representatives	7.3	8.6	6.8	6.4
Non SFC licensed employees	8.4	7.0	6.2	5.7

Average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category

B4. Labour Standards

The Group strictly complies with the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Personal data collected during recruitment process will be used solely for the purpose of selection of suitable candidates. Verification of personal data, including checking on identification documents, original certificates and internet search, will also be conducted to ensure that information provided by candidates is true and correct. There is no child or forced labour in the Group.

In 2021, the Group had no non-compliance cases regarding violation of relevant child labour and forced labour laws.

Operating Practices

B5. Supply Chain Management

The Group mainly purchases office equipment, office supplies and information technology software (such as online trading platforms for brokerage services) in Hong Kong. Except for two suppliers for online trading platforms and one supplier for photocopying machines which are relatively stable, other suppliers of the Group can be easily replaced. During the procurement process, the Group evaluates and assesses the suppliers' quality of services and products and also their experience and track record. The Group maintains good communication with suppliers and conducts regular review based on their quality of services and products. The Group is of the view that its suppliers have no material adverse impact on the environment and society.

B6. Product Responsibility

Customer Services

The Group is committed to providing professional service to customers after understanding the characteristics and risks of their investments. During the account opening process, account executives perform thorough "know-your-client" checks and explain to customers inherent risks of investments in different markets. The Group also promptly delivers daily and monthly statements and notices to customers through emails while mailing service is still available upon request. Customers can also access their trading account with the latest trading transaction and position through private login to online trading platform of the Group or telephone enquiry with account executives. In 2020 and 2021, the Group did not receive any complaints from its customers. Being a financial services company, the business operation of the Group does not involve products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons. Quality assurance process and recall procedures are also not application to the Group.

The Group is committed to complying with relevant laws and regulations under the regulatory regime for the financial service industry, all applicable provisions of the SFO and its supplementary rules and regulations as well as the codes and guidelines issued by the SFC, in particular, Securities and Futures (Client Securities) Rules (Cap. 571H of the Laws of Hong Kong), Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules (Cap. 571I of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (Cap. 571N of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Protection of Customers' Data

The Group places vast effort on protecting the privacy of its customers, partners and employees in the collection, processing and use of their personal data. The Group adheres to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and ensures that customers' personal data is securely kept and processed only for the purposes of which it has been collected.

In 2021, the Group was not aware of any incidents of non-compliance with relevant regulations and codes concerning health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to the provision of the Group's services.

Intellectual Property

The Group values the protection of intellectual property by registration of its trademark, constant monitoring of its domain name and regular renewal upon its expiration in a timely manner. The Group builds up and protects its intellectual property rights by prolonged use and registration of domain name and trademark.

B7. Anti-corruption, Anti-money Laundering and Counter-terrorist Financing

The Group fosters an ethical corporate culture and prevents any unethical trading activities. The Group has adopted a whistleblowing policy to raise concerns about possible suspected business irregularities. The Group encourages its employees to report to the HR Manager of the Group when suspected wrongdoings are identified, and to report to law enforcement authorities when necessary. All reports can be made verbally (by phone) or in writing (by letter or email). If the staff members feel not comfortable reporting potential fraud cases directly, anonymous reports can be submitted. All potential frauds will be fully investigated by the management of the Group confidentially. The management will take corrective actions to resolve substantiated frauds and will report fraudulent activity to the board members.

The Group complies with all applicable AML laws and regulations in Hong Kong including the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Cap. 615 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Guideline on Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Financing of Terrorism (For Licensed Corporations) issued by the SFC.

Being a licensed corporation under the SFC with client money being held in its trust account, the Group formulates strict policies to deal with the AML and counter-terrorist financing during account opening procedures, customers due diligence, and receipt and withdrawal of client money. The policies mainly include (i) customer due diligence by identifying and verifying the identities of the beneficial owners of a client account with reference to data or information provided by a reliable and independent source; (ii) reviewing documents, data and information relating to the Group's customers from time to time, performing risk assessment on customers, monitoring activities of the customers and identifying those transactions that are complex, large and unusual; (iii) reporting suspicious transactions to the Group's money laundering reporting officer without delay; and (iv) recording sufficient data and information to trace individual transactions and establishing a financial profile of any suspicious account or customer, while all records are kept for at least six years.

Staff trainings on AML and CTF were also conducted during the year under review to update and familiarise the staff with the latest AML and CTF measures and to provide an overview of the enhanced AML and CTF systems of the Company. Reading materials in relation to business ethics and anti-corruption were circulated to all staff, so as to enhance employees' understanding of anti-bribery and anticorruption.

No significant risks relating to improper or dishonest handling of money were identified during the year under review. The Group did not receive any whistleblowing reports from its employees during the year as well. There were also neither any confirmed incidents or suspected incidents regarding bribery, corruption, fraud, money laundering or terrorist financing against the laws of Hong Kong nor any legal proceedings regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its employees during the year under review. The Group was not aware of any non-compliance with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering or terrorist financing which have a significant impact on the Group in 2021.

Community

B8. Community Engagement

The Group is aware of the community's needs and takes up its corporate social responsibility with best efforts to make contribution to the community by sponsoring community activities and making donations to various charitable organisations. The Group also encourages its employees to participate in volunteering activities and delicate resources for further contribution in the future.

In 2021, the Group focused its community contribution on environmental protection and organised a hiking activity to pick up trash along the countryside trail. The Group will also consider to make donations to charities when the financial results of the Group shows improvement.